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PUGET SOUND & WILLAPA HARBOR RAILWAY
VALUATION SEQTION WASEINGTON 1.

The Puget Found and Willapa Harbor Rallway extends
about &8 miles in = general weeterly direction from a connection
with the C. M. & St. P, Hallway Compary'e Graye Harbor line at
Yaytown, Washington, to Raymond, Washingtoun, which is situated
on the tide flate along the Willapa River., The line pasaes
through the irmpcrtant towne of Centralia and Chehalis and eerves
the rich timber country along the Chehalle and Willapa Rivers.

Hecords show that a large amount of reconnolssance and
survey work was required to produce the line as adopted and con-
gtructed. An attempt was made to connect with the C. WM. & §t. P,
Ry. at Helsinz Junction, but this line did not develop favorably
when surveyed. Seven distinct reconnolssance surveye were mada,
the first in September 1910, and the last in June 1913, a total
of 161 miles being covered. About 130 miles of preliminery
gurvey and 100 milese of location survey were made or about two
miles of preliminary, and one and cne-half miles of location for
each mile of adopted line. The preliminary and location
surveys were made between March and August 1213.

Conetruction prior to track laying was carried on under
the eupgrvislion of a Chief Englineer with elght Resldent Fngineera
and Partiee., After track laying the engineering foroe was
materially reduced, but considerable construction was carried on
in the way of widening ocuts and embankmente, bullding depots,
telephone lines, fepce, etc. Construction was begun in August,
1813, sand completed for track laying in July, 1815.

Contracte Tor clearing, Erubbing. rading, bridge and
gulvert work were 1at to three contractors; thrie McDougell &
Company having the work on Milee Nne to Forty-two inclueive,
and ¥iles Sixty-five and Sixty-eix; Hane Pederson, ¥iles Forty-
thres to Fifty-four inclueive, and the Willapa Conatruction
Company, Viles Fifiv-three to Sixty-four inolusive.
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The line swings south from Maytown and following nc
particular drainage travals almcet due south over the slightly
folling country on light gradients and easy curvature to
Chehalias. Here 1t ewinge to the west and the Chehalis River
Valley is entered and is from here followed with frequent
croseings of tributary streams to Doty, in Mile Thirty-seven.
The gradients and curvature for this portion are light,
maximum curvature being 6 degrees and gradient 9/10 of 1 per-
cent, The Elk Creek Valley is entered at Doty and from there
followed with frequent side drainage and main stream crossings
to & point 13 miles west of Bedfsrd, where the line ewinge
into the Beaver Creek drainage, which is followed to Sudbury,
the summit of tha line, being about 400 feet higher than May-
town, point of bezinning, and nearly B00 feet higher than
Reymond, the terminus.

The curvature on this last nared portion ie moderate,
the maximum being € degress, and the maximum gradient 1 per-
cent.

Leaving Sudbury a rapid deecent 18 made on a 3+ per-
cent gradient and with eharp curvature along the steep slopes
of Fagt Creek to P. & E, Junction, where Ml?l Creek Valley im
reached and from there followed with eeveral croesinge to a
point about a mile and a quarter east of Mooee. Hers the
Willapa River Valley ls remched and is from hers followed until
the line reaches the tide flats in Mile Sixty-three. The
gradiente and curvature on this laet portion are moderate,

The 1ine between P, & E, Junction and East Raymond
was built by the Facific & Fastern Rallway Company and was
acquired by the P. 8. & W. H, Company.

Clearing wae fairly heavy on the firast five milee
west from Maytown. From Mile Five to Mile Forty-two, clearing
waé generally light, although an cocasional plece of heavily
timbered land wae encountered. From Mile Forty-two to Haymond
clearing wae generally heavy.

The grading work from Maytown to Chehalis was fairly
1ight, running about 13,000 csubic yards per mile, largely
claseified. About four miles of thie section was bullt on an
old U. P. grade, whioh had been previously constructed and re-
Quired considsrable regrading and dreesing up. The work from
Chehalls west to Sudbury was fairly heavy side hill develop-
mant.

The old U. P, grade was used in the construction
of about eight miles of thie portion, between Wilea Fourteen
and Twenty-one. The heaviest work cocurred in Wiles Fifty-
three and Fifty-four, near Sudbury, on which about 155,000
and 135,000 cubic yarde were removed respectively. Miles
Sixteen, Seventeen, Twenty-four, Twenty-six, Twenty-ssven,
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and Twenty-nin=, were guite heavy, also averaging about 55,000
cubic yards per mile. Between Sudbury and P. & E. Junction,
the work consiste of heavy slde hill development with several
high trestle bridges. Alnn% Will Creek the cld P. & E. grade
ia moderately 1light, and between Fast Raymond and the terminus
the work consists of fairly heavy grading and a large amount
of bridge construction. The average for the entire line is

about 35,000 cubic yards per mile, of which a large percentage
ig classifled.

Several channel changea were made on the Elk, Beaver,
and Miil Cresks to eliminate bridge work.

A steam shovel was used on the east end in Miles One
toc Five and on the two heavieat cuts at the end of Mils Ten,
and beginning of Mile Eleven.

Teama were usad for the light grade construction and
to redreas the old U. P. grade botwesn Hilea Five and Twenty-
five, with the exception that the rock cute were let to
station men, and a drag line scraper was used on some of the
aide borrow work. A steam shovel waa used to build the grade
from West Adna, Vile Twenty-five, to the South Fork croseing
in Nile Twenty-eight. A drag line scraper did the grading
work on Miles Twenty-nine to Thirty-one. A eteam shovel was
used for the heavy cuts in ¥ile Thirty-three, and teama weras
used on the comparatively light work between there and the
Chehalis River croseing, juet weet of Doty in Mile Thirty-
nine. The work up the Tlk and PReaver Creek Valleys was a
large percent gollid rock and was done by etation msn.

The summit cut at Sudbury waes started by station
men, but their progress was slow on account of wet material
and a steam shovel was installed. This cut is very wet and
has caussd coneiderable trouble both during the early con-
struction period and since track has been laid., It has been
widened and the material train hauled for bridge filling and
pank widening. The work done on the weet slope along East
Creek was the heaviest work on the line and was done by
gtation men.

The P. 4 E. roadbed, purchased by the P. 5. & W. H.
Coc. had been constructed previous to the P. S. & W. H. work,
three miles being built in 1807, two in 1909, # mile in 1510,
ani three miles in 1213. A large amount of material bas been
train hauled to this portion for ralsing and widening embank-
ments and filling bridges since the P. S. & W, H. have started
operation. Several channel changes were built to eliminate

bridges built by the P. & E. Company.
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The line from Fast Raymond to Raymond was bBuilt by
the P. 8. & W. H, Company, a stoam shovel being usesd for the
heavy cut in Mile Blxty~-four, and station men in the cut in
Mile Sixty-six,

The bridze work wae unusually heavy dus to the
frequent stream ecrossings and the pile trestle work on the
tide flats in Raymend, The important atream crossings were
the Skookum Chuck River bridge in Mile Fourteen; the Neuwaukunm
River ¢roesing 4in ¥ile Twenty; the Chehalis River crossings in
ilea Twenty-eicnt, Thirty-four and Thirty-seven; the Elk Creeck
grossing in ¥ile Forty-three; the Mill Creek crossings in Miles
Fifty-nine and Sixty; the Willapa River crossing in Mile Sixty-
three, and the Ellis Lagoon oroesing in Mile Sixty-six., These
bridges involved the use of timber Howe truss spans varying in
length from 150 feet to 72 feet with plle and framed plers and
approaches. Ssversl hog rod trusses were used aleaz the Mill
Creek Valley, milee Fifty-five to Fifty-nine, for leas import-
ant etream erossings.

Five high treastles were btuilt between Budbury and
P, & E, Junotion, involving the use of about 80,000 F.E.M. and
7,000 1lineal feet of piling. The pile trestle work for the main
and yard traoke at Raymond involved the use of about 1,000,000
F.BE.M. and about 80,000 lineal feet of piling., The crdinary
pile and framed trestles were used for the less important water
ways, cattle passes, etc.

The material for the trusees was purchased near Numby,
and shipped wvia the T. Y. & 5t. P. to Maytown where a framing yard
wag estabtlished and the timber cut and framed ready for ereotion,
After the framing the truss material was taken to the sites by
work train, the falsework on the epane having been bullt of suf-
ficient strength to support traific during traok laying. A large
i part of the piling was purohased locally, and the squared timber
from the oloeest looal mille.

The pile bridges, falsework and foundation for the
trues spans were huilt by contract. The spans were framed and
erected by Hailway Company forcss.

The culverts were bullt principally of timber, those
| on the east 40 miles being of squared timber and those on the
| west end of hewn logs.

Track was laid from Maytown to Doty in the summer
and f3ll of 1914, and was finlshed intc Raymond in the summer
,  of 1915. HNew £5# rail was 1la2id in the main track and lighter
material in the sidinge. The work wae perfcrmed with a Hoberts
Brothers mechine, A material yard was cstablished at Maytom
for the first few miles of track material, but after track
reached Chehalis, ths vard was established at that point,
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Ballast wae obtalned from the Fesex Pit 4n ¥ile Six.

Fraenuent oroesings with other lines of rallroad neces-
sitated spesial froge, and in the ozeee of main line crossings
interlooking plants, Interlockers were eestablished at the O.W,
R.& N. and N. P. orcssings in ¥ile Thirteen, and at the X, P,
orossings in Yiles Twenty and Thnirty-seven

Uaterial for right of way fenoe, telegraph lines, and
buildings, was dlstributed by work train after the track was laid.
Right of Way fesnoe with the necessary crossing facllities was
built except in inacoeesible and isolated plaoces.

Framed passenger depots and seperate buildinga for
freight depote were built at Centralia, Chehalis and Raymona, the
frelght depot at the latter polnt having rooms for the Superin-
tendent's offices. These bulldings at the two former plages wers
set on oonorete foundations, but at Raymond they rest on pilzs.
Combination freight and passenger depots were bullt at Dryad and
Doty, and shelter sheds at the lesa important eidings, Water eta-
tions were established at Essex, Chehalis, Dryad, Bedford, Fir-
dale and Raymond, A two egtall engine houee and a Wye were bulls
at Raymond., Fuel o4l tanks have just recently been built at Uay-
town and Raymond, A 75 foot single track transfer bridge has
been built at Raymend and barge service 1s maintained between
Raymond and South Pend.

The usual tranch line equipment 18 used in the operation
2f the line.

Until Degamber 3lot, 191E, the Puget Sound & Willapa Har-
bor Railway was operated as a separate organization with the C.M, &
St.P.Ry,Co, owninxg all of the outstanding stook, On that date
the railway, preperty and franchises of the Puget Bound & Willapa
Harber FRailway Company were conveyed to the Chicago, Milwaukees &

St. Paul Co, and it 18 now coperated as a part of the Ooast Divieion.
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